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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 total

comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 35 to the financial statements, which describes the management’s
assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the
Company. In view of the uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the financial impact

on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account and with the returns received from the branches not visited by us.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there were no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any long term derivative contracts as at Mach 31, 2021.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2021.

13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regjstration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership Number 058507
UDIN: 21058507AAAABX4338

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18, 2021
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Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021

Page 2 of 2
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes

those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph 4 of the
main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership Number: 058507
UDIN: 21058507AAAABX4338

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18, 2021
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ended March 31, 2021
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i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year

and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties as disclosed in Note 4(a) on fixed assets

to the financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

viii

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax , goods and service tax and provident fund, though there
has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including duty of customs, value added tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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X.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

xiv.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 13 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm R

istration Number: 12754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Membership Number: 058507
UDIN: 21058507AAAABX4338

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18, 2021



Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Balance Sheet

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4(a) 263.74 469.18
Right-of-use assets 4(b) 383.94 643.61
Intangible assets 5 32.02 65.34
Financial assets
(i) Loans 6(a) 102.50 97.71
(ii) Other financial assets 6(f) 20.95 -
Current tax assets (Net) 7 1,187.12 2,145.41
Other non-current assets 8 0.57 0.44
Total non-current assets 1,990.84 3,421.69
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(b) 6,676.54 -
(ii) Trade receivables 6(c) 4,944 80 6,254 .91
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6(d) 618.58 1,597.26
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 6(e) 2.00 -
(v) Loans 6(a) 16.70 25.72
(vi) Other financial assets 6(f) 35.03 6.80
Other current assets 9 159.49 463.64
Total current assets 12,453.14 8,348.33
Total assets 14,443.98 11,770.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10(a) 3,153.94 3,051.66
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 10(b) 5,343.56 649.64
Total equity 8,497.50 3,701.30
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 4(b) 166.84 448.04
Employee benefit obligations 11 493.61 299.54
Total non-current liabilities 660.45 747.58
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 4(b) 263.44 237.65
(ii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 12(a) 174.74 742.03
(b) total outstanding dues other than (ii) (a) above 12(a) 3,213.09 4,796.26
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12(b) 829.67 749.42
Employee benefit obligations 11 367.20 321.29
Other current liabilities 13 437.89 474.49
Total current liabilities 5,286.03 7,321.14
Total liabilities 5,946.48 8,068.72
Total cquity and liabilities 14,443.98 11,770.02

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regisfration Number: 012754N/N500016

W\'WZ%MW :

Amitesh Dutta Alok Bansal Mangj Sharma Richa Arya

Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 058507 DIN : 01653526 DIN : 02745526 M. No. 28873
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: June 18, 2021 Date: June 18, 2021 Date: June 18,2021

Date: June 18, 2021




Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Revenue from operations 14 18,832.36 2261924
Other income 15 372.33 281.15
Total income 19,204.69 22,900.39
Expenses:
Ciiployee benefit expensc 16 9,208.35 12,138.12
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 559.93 672.40
Advertising and promotion expense 18 4,841.34 15,861.67
Network and internet expenses 19 1,401.28 1,544 41
Other expenses 20 1,779.32 2,736.01
Finance costs 21 56.54 66.86
Total expenses 17,846.76 33,019.47
Profit/(LLoss) before tax 1,357.93 (10,119.08)
Income tax expense:

Current tax 22 - -

Deferred tax 23 - &
Total tax expense - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,357.93 (10,119.08)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations [Gain/(Loss)] 11 (26.01) (4.39)
Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (26.01) (4.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,331.92 (10,123.47)
Earnings/(Loss) per equity share: [Nominal value per share Rs.10/- (March 31, 2020: Rs.10/-)]
Basic (in Rs.) 27 4.37 (34.87)
Diluted (in Rs.) 27 437 (34.87)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership No. 058507

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Alok Bansal
Director
DIN : 01653526

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021

Manoj Sharma
Director
DIN : 02745526

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021

— X

Richa Arya

Company Secretary
M. No. 28873

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021



Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

)]

1n)

Equity share capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes Amount
As at April 1, 2019 2,687.04
Changes in equity share capital 10(a) 364.62
As at March 31, 2020 3,051.66
As at April 1,2020 3,051.60
Changes in equity share capital 10(a) 102.28
As at March 31, 2021 3,153.94
Other cquity
Reserves and surplus
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Group Scttled share
Particulars Notes Securitics premium Retained earnings based payment Total
reserve

Balance as at April 1,2019 14,792.96 (13,832.19) 1,122.19 2,082.96
Loss for the year 10(b) - (10,119.08) - (10,119.08)
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - (4.39) - (4.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (10,123.47) - (10,123.47)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of equity shares 10(b) 8,635.37 - - 8,635.37
Employee share-based payment expense 10(b) - - 54.78 54.78
Balance as at March 31, 2020 23,428.33 (23,955.66) 1,176.97 649.64
Profit for the year 10(b) - 1,357193 - 1,357.93
Other comprehensive income 10(b) - (26.01) - (26.01)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,331.92 - 1,331.92
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issuc of equity shares 10(b) 2,897.73 - - 2,897.73
Employce share-based payment expense 10(b) - - 464.27 464.27
Balance as at March 31,2021 26,326.06 (22,623.74) 1,641.24 5,343.56

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta
Partner
Membership No. 058507

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W,]/)s gy

e

Alok Bansal
Director
DIN : 01653526

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021

Manoj Sharma
Director
DIN : 02745526

Place: Gurugram

Date: June 18,2021

R

Richa Arya
Company Sccretary
M. No. 28873

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 18,2021



Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020 (Rs.

Particulars Notes
Articuiary okes (Rs. in Lakhs) in Lakhs)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,357.93 (10,119.08)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 17 559.93 672.40
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 15 (0.05) (0.35)
Gain on sale of current investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (net) 15 (48.69) (115.76)
Loss allowance no longer required written back 15 (120.44) (137.51)
Provision for doubtful advances no longer required written back 20 - 15.80
Bad debts 20 108.59 -
Interest Income - Unwinding of discount - measured at amortised cost 15 (8.07) (6.76)
Interest income - On bank deposits 15 (2.60) (3.35)
Interest income - On income tax refund 15 (83.90) (17.42)
Covid-19 - related rent concessions 15 (39.56) -
Gain on termination of leases 15 (1.17) -
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 (35.15) -
Finance costs 21 56.54 66.86
Employee share-based payment expense 16 464.27 *54.78
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss 20 4.07 0.93
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 1,321.96 1,849.14
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (2,155.06) 639.37
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets (0.13) 12.58
Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 80.25 151.68
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 304.15 78.60
(Increase)/Decrease in loans-current 9.01 (17.84)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current financial assets (20.95) -
(Increase)/Decrease in other current financial assets (28.23) (1,534.17)
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefit obligations 213.96 220.15
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (36.60) 30.55
(Increase)/Decrease in loans-non-current 3.28 (12.23)
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities - (23.50)
|Cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 1,903.36 (8,195.13)
Income taxes paid (net) 958.29 (805.54)
|Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 2,861.65 (9,000.67)
Cash flows from investing activitics

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4(a), 5 (77.03) (300.15)
Purchase of investments (15,199.35) (17,770.00)
Proceeds from sale of investments 8,606.65 18,885.66
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturtity of more than three months but 6(¢) (2.00) (300.00)
less than twelve months)

Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits (having original maturtity of more than three 411.00
months but less than twelve months) - .
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.08 -
Interest received 15 86.50 20.78
|th cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (6,583.15) 947.29
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium) 10(a), 10(b) 3,000.01 8,999.99
Principal payment of lease liabilities (201.19) (165.23)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (55.99) (51.84)
|Net cash inflow from financing activities 2,742.82 8,782.92
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (978.68) 729.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 6(d) 1,597.26 867.72
ICash and cash equivalents at end of the year 618.58 1,597.26




Non -Cash financing and investing activity

- Acquisition of right-of-use assets 4b - 292.67

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statcment
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following :

Balances with Bank 6(d) 616.96 1,585.34
Cash on hand 6(d) 1.62 11.92
Balances per statement of cash flows 618.58 1,597.26
Notes:

1. Thc above Statcment of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard [Ind AS -7 on "Statement of
Cash Flows"].
The above cash flow statement should be sead in conjunction with the accompanying notcs.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of cven date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 /

o N

Amitesh Dutta Alok Bansal Manoj Sharma Richa Arya
Partner Dircctor Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 058507 DIN : 01653526 DIN : 02745526 M. No. 28873
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: June 18,2021 Date: June 18,2021 Date: June 18,2021 Date: Junc 18, 2021




a.

d.

Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 1: General Information

Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (“the Company” or “Paisabazaar”) is a private
limited Company incorporated on 15th December 2011 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
having its registered office at Plot no.135P, Sector 44, Gurugram, Haryana. The Company is a wholly
owned subsidiary of PB Fintech Private Limited (Erstwhile, Etechaces marketing and consulting private
limited). The Company operates its website www.paisabazaar.com for showing online comparison and
sales of financial products like home/car/personal/education/other loans, credit cards, saving accounts,
mutual funds etc.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
Compliance with IND AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value;

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

- Share based payments

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation /
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
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accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over the useful
lives, using the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation done by the management's expert which in some cases are different as those specified by
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

The residual values of the assets are assessed to be nil. The assets' residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows:

Description Useful life
Computers 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures* 7 years
Office Equipment* 3 years
Lease Hold Improvements Period of Lease or 3 years
whichever is earlier

* For these class of assets. based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence,
useful lives of these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act. 2013.

. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. it any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial
year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates. the
amortization period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The Company has software licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible
assets recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer.

Sale of services
The Company earns revenue from rendering services as described below:

1) Commission from online aggregation of financial products - includes commission earned for sale of
financial products based on the leads generated from its designated website

2) Sale of leads - includes revenue from sale of lead information of potential customers to banks etc.

3) Online marketing and consulting — includes bulk emailers, advertisement banners on its website and
credit score advisory services.

4) Marketing support services — includes road-show services

Revenue from above services is recognized at a point in time when the related services are rendered as
per the terms of the agreement with customer. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax
charged on such services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is
carried in the balance sheet as unbilled trade receivable as the amount is recoverable from the customer
without any future performance obligation. Cash received before the services are delivered is
recognised as a contract liability, if any.

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is
postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the services are rendered with a credit term of
30-45 days, which is consistent with market practice.




Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’) i.e. Indian
rupee (INR), which is Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency (INR) using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity and
Compensated absences.

i) Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered
as contribution to defined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of
contributions required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

ii) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses . the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and
the return on plan asset (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit and loss in the period of
a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined liability or asset.

iii) Short-term obligations

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the services.

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences. when employees render the services that increase
their entitlement of future compensated absences:

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences. when the absences occur.




iv) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance
sheet as the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

v) Share-based payments

Share-based payments are considered as 'Equity-settled share-based payment transactions' under Ind AS
102. The Company measures the fair value of the services received and recognises an expense in the
statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase in equity by reference to the fair value at the
grant date of the equity instruments granted. [Refer note 26].

Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing
April 1,2019.

Company as a lessee:

From April 1, 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components.

Lease liabilities:
Assets and liabilities arising [rom a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the lease payments.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are
allocated between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.




k.

Right to use of assets:

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
lability and lease payments made before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right to use assets are depreciated over the asset’s lease term on a straight-line basis.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets:

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment including 1T
equipment..

Subleases:
The Company has shared use of certain leased premises with its group entities and treated the same as
sub-lease under Ind AS 116.

Assignment:

The Company has assigned certain leases to its group companies. The lease assignment arrangement has
been accounted for as a sublease in accordance with Ind AS 116. The Company, being an intermediate
lessor evaluates a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset rather than the leased asset.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit
alter tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transitions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.




m. Income Taxes

n.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that is probable that tax profits w111
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in

respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of

management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be contirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements
since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its
recognition is appropriate. A contingent asset is disclose; an inflow of economic benefits is




probable. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through
profit and loss), and

* those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial Recognition:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement:

After initial measurement, financial assets classified at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the Statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the financial asset other than equity
instruments, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit
and loss.

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting
date with all the changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:




e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt instruments that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other income/ (expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other income
in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 33 details how the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset. the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.




Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income
within other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI
is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part
of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective rate of interest.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.




q. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency.

r. Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. Refer Note 33

S.  Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule 111 (Division I1), unless otherwise stated.

Note 3: Critical estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements
is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line
item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

> Lstimated useful life of tangible assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change
the utility of property, plant and equipment. Reasonable changes in assumptions are not expected
to have a significant impact on the amounts as at the balance sheet date.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 11

Recognition of deferred tax assets — Refer Note 23

Leases — Refer Note 4(b)

Y Y Y

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.




Note 4(a) : Property, plant and equipment

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Total
Equipment Fixtures Improvements

Year ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 890.90 112.54 83.63 212.28 1,299.35
Additions 201.10 12.57 2.97 0.96 217.60
Disposals - (1.36) - - (1.36)
Closing gross carrying amount 1,092.00 123.75 86.60 213.24 1,515.59

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 376.13 78.21 72.31 107.89 634.54
Depreciation charge during the year 307.03 33.13 2.36 70.71 413.23
Disposals - (1.36) - - (1.36)
Closing accumulated depreciation 683.16 109.98 74.67 178.60 1,046.41
Net carrying amount 408.84 13.77 11.93 34.64 469.18

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 1,092.00 123.75 86.60 213.24 1,515.59
Additions 69.64 7.34 - - 76.98
Disposals (161.39) (0.42) - - (161.81)
Closing gross carrying amount 1,000.25 130.67 86.60 213.24 1,430.76

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 683.16 109.98 74.67 178.60 1,046.41
Depreciation charge during the year 248.22 7.19 2.67 2231 280.39
Disposals (159.36) (0.42) - - (159.78)
Closing accumulated depreciation 772.02 116.75 77.34 200.91 1,167.02

Net carrying amount 228.23

9.26 12.33 263.74




Note 4(b) : Leases

This note provides information for the leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has taken various office premises on leases. Rental contracts are

typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 5 years, but may have extension options as described in (1v) below.

(a) Right-of-usc assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Right-of-use assets - Total
Officc premiscs
Year ended March 31, 2020
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount (as at April 1, 2019 - on
transition to Ind AS 116) 553.93 553.93
Additions 292.67 292.67
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount 846.60 846.60
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - -
Depreciation charge during the year 202.99 202.99
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation 202.99 202.99
Net carrying amount 643.61 643.61
Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 846.60 846.60
Additions * -
Disposals (20.48) (20.48)
Closing gross carrying amount 826.12 826.12
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 202.99 202.99
Depreciation charge during the year 246.17 246.17
Disposals (6.98) (6.98)
Closing accumulated depreciation 442.18 442.18
Net carrying amount 383.94 383.94
(b) Lease liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
) As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current 263.44 237.65
Non current 166.84 448.04
Total 430.28 685.69
(ii) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows shows the following amount relating to leascs:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Depreciation charge on right of use assets - (refer Note 17) 246.17 202.99
(b) Interest expense (included in finance cost, refer Note 21) 55,99 57.36
('c) Expense relating to short term leases (included in rent under other expenses) 9.19 8.12
Total (a+b+c) 311.35 268.47




(iii) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2021 was Rs. 257.18 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 217.07 Lakhs.)

(iv) Extension and termination options:-
Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases . These are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the group’s operations. The extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and the respective lessor.

(v) Covid-19 related rent concessions:-

During the current financial year, the Company has received rent concessions for Covid-19 on one lease and has accordingly applied the practical expedient. With
respect to these rent concessions, the Company has recognised an income amounting Rs. 39.56 Lakhs in the statement of profit and loss (Refer Note 15).

(vi) Critical judgements in determining the lease term:-

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise
a termination option. Extension options (or periods afier termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or
not terminated).

For leases of office premises, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

a) If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

b) If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

c) Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in office leases have been included in the lease liability, because the Company could not replace the assets without significant cost or
business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of
reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee.

During the current financial year, the financial impact of revising the lease terms to reflect the effect of exercising termination options was a net decrease in
recognised lease liabilities and right-to use of assets of Rs.14.70 Lakhs and Rs.13.50 Lakhs respectively (March 31, 2020 - Nil).




Note 5 : Intangible assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Computer Software Total

Year ended March 31, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 71.07 71.07

Additions 82.89 82.89

Disposals (17.63) (17.63)
Closing gross carrying amount 136.33 136.33

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 32.44 32.44

Amortisation charge during the year 56.18 56.18

Disposals (17.63) (17.63)
Closing accumulated amortisation 70.99 70.99

Closing net carrying amount 65.34 65.34

Year ended March 31, 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 136.33 136.33

Additions 0.05 0.05

Disposals (2.48) (2.48)
Closing gross carrying amount 133.90 133.90

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 70.99 70.99

Amortisation charge during the year 33.37 33.37

Disposals (2.48) (2.48)
Closing accumulated amortisation 101.88 101.88

Closing net carrying amount 32.02 32.02




Note 6 : Financial asscts

Note 6 (a) : Loans

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

Total

Current

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employces

Security deposits

Total

Break-up of security details

Loans considered good - Sccured
Loans considered good - Unsecured
Total

Loss allowance

Total

Note 6(b) : Current Investments

Investment in mutual funds

Quoted

L&T Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth

14,786.09 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)

L&T Overnight Fund Direct Plan - Growth
62,300.45 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
Mirae Asset Cash Management Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
28,035.79 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)

SBI Savings Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
921,216.69 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
Sundaram Money FFund - Dircct Growth - MFDG
3,276,206.37 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
Sundaram Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth - USDG
911,398.52 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
TATA Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
26,647.16 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
TATA Money Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
12,261.39 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
TATA Ovemight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
23,049.71 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)

UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth Plan
22,614.76 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)

UTI Moncy Market Fund - Direct Growth Plan
20,874.28 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil units)
Total current investments

Agegregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Apggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

As at
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

102.50 97.71
102.50 97.71
11.40 23.22
5.30 2.50
16.70 25.72
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

119.20 123.42
119.20 123.42
119.20 123.42
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

416.81

1,000.34

608.78

300.05

1,421.81

100.87

865.40

449.98

250.30

762.23

499.97

6,676.54

6,676.54




Note 6(c) : Trade receivables

Trade receivables

- Billed

- Unbilled #

Less: Loss allowance
Total

Current portion
Non-current portion

Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Loss allowance
Total

As at
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

1,606.05 3,367.57
3,384.13 3,053.16
(45.38) (165.82)
4,944.80 6,254.91
4,944.80 6,251.91
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

4,990.18 6,420.73

4,990.18 6,420.73
(45.38) (165.82)

4,944.80 6,254.91

# Unbilled receivables have been reclassified from "Other current financial assets” to "Trade receivables” as it is in respect of the amount due on account of
services rendered in the normal course of business and the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Note 6(d) : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank
Cash on hand
Total

Note 6(¢) : Other Bank Balances

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity with more than
3 months but less than 12 months
Total

Note 6(f) : Other financial assets

Current

Amount recoverable from Holding Company for expenses (Refer note 28)

Amount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary Company for expenses (Refer note 28)
Amount recoverable from employees

Total

Non-Current

Balances in fixed deposit accounts with original maturity with more
than 12 months*

Total

* fixed deposits under lien

As at
March 31,2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

616.96 1,585.34
1.62 11.92
618.58 1,597.26
As at As at

March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

2.00 -
2.00 -

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

3.26
6.06
25.71

6.80

35.03

6.80

20.95

20.95




Note 7 : Current tax assets (Net)

Advance income tax (nct of provision: Nil, March 31, 2020: Nil)

Total

Note 8 : Other non-current assets

Prepaid expense
Total

Note 9 : Other current assets

Advance to vendors

Less: Loss allowance
Balance with Government Authorities

Prepaid expense
Others
Total

As at
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

1,187.12 2,14541
1,187.12 2,14541
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

0.57

0.44

0.57

0.44

41.87
(23.90) 17.97
97.99
42.60
0.93
159.49

76.58
(39.70)

As at
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

36.88
385.09
41.64
0.03

463.64




Note 10 (a): Equity
Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
(in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at April 01,2019 300.00 3,000.00
Increase during the ycar 200.00 2,000.00
As at March 31, 2020 500.00 5,000.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31,2021 500.00 5,000.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital
Number of shares Amount
(in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
As at April 01, 2019 268.70 2,687.04
Add: Shares issued during the year 36.46 364.62
As at March 31,2020 305.16 3,051.66
As at April 01, 2020 305.16 3,051.66
Add: Shares issucd during the year 10.23 102.28
As at March 31, 2021 315.39 3,153.94

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the cvent of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining asscts of the Company
afler distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Shares of the Company held by holding company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
PB Fintech Private Limited (Erstwhile, Etechaces Marketing and
Consulting Private Limited) (the Holding Company) and its 315.39 3,153.94 305.16 3,051.66
nominee
Total 315.39 3,153.94 305.16 3,051.66
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number of shares o . Number of shares
. h ¢ i
(in Lakhs) Y hotlding (in Lakhs) % holding
PB Fintech Private Limited (Erstwhile, Etechaces Marketing and 315.39 100.00% 305.16 100.00%
Consulting Private Limited) (the Holding Company)
Total 305.16

A




Note 10 (b): Other Equity

Reserve and surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Securities premium 26,326.06 23,428.33
Retained earnings (22,623.74) (23,955.66)
Group scttlcd share based payment reserve 1,641.24 1,176.97
Total reserves and surplus 5,343.56 649.64
i) Securities premium (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Opening balance 23,428.33 14,792.96
Additions during the year 2,897.73 8,635.37
Deductions/adjustments during the year - -
Closing balance 26,326.06 23,428.33

ii) Retained earnings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Opening balance (23,955.66) (13,832.19)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 1,357.93 (10,119.08)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 26.01) 4.39)

obligation, net of tax [Gain/ (loss)]

Closing balance

(22,623.74)

(23,955.66)

iii) Group settled share based payment reserve

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Opening balance 1,176.97 1,122.19
Additions for ESOP expense incurred 464.27 54.78
Closing balance 1,641.24 1,176.97

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

a) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The securities premium is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Group settled share based payment reserve

Group settled share based payment reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options granted to the employees of the

Company by the Holding Company under ESOP scheme.




Note 11 : Employee benefit obligations

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Gratuity - 493.61 493.61 7.37 299.54 306.91
Compensated absences 367.20 - 367.20 313.92 - 313.92
Total employee benefit obligations 367.20 493.61 860.81 321.29 299.54 620.83

(i) Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leaves. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

The amount of the provision of Rs. 367.20 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 — Rs. 313.92 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months.
The following amounts reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Leave obligations not expected to be settled

o 289.50 238.53
within the next 12 months

(ii) Defined contribution plans

a) Provident Fund

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2021 towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 327.89 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 576.26 Lakhs). Refer Note

16
b) Employee State Insurance

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of employee state insurance. The expense recognised during the year ended March 31, 2021 towards defined contribution plan is Rs.
82.25 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 178.18 Lakhs). Refer Note 16

(iii) Post employment benefit plan obligations- Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The
amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of
service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contribution to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding
to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

a) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Present value Fair value of plan
S Net amount
of obligation assets
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
April 01, 2019 220.71 49.62 171.09
Current service cost 119.89 - 119.89
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest Cost 14.90 335 11.55
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 134.79 3.35 131.44
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts
; : - 3 2.64
included in interest expense/(income) (269 ( )
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic B ) )
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (44.68) - (44.68)
Experience (gains)/losses 51.71 - 51.71
Total amount recognised in other 703 (2.64) 439

comprehensive income

Employer contributions
Benefit payments

March 31, 2020




Present value
of obligation
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Fair value of plan
assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Net amount

(Rs. in Lakhs)

April 1, 2020 360.93 54.02 306.91
Current service cost 150.30 - 150.30
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest Cost 23.78 3.39 20.39
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 174.08 3.39 170.69
Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts

- p)

included in interest expense/(income) (0:62) (0:62)

(Gam)/lqss from change in demographic (0.02) ~ ©0.02)

assumptions

(Gam)/]qss from change in financial 125 47 } 125.47

assumptions

Experience (gains)/losses (98.82) - (98.82)
Total amour!t rc.cognlsc(] in other 26.63 (0.62) 26.01
COH]HEI!EHSIVE mcome
Employer contributions - 10.00 (10.00)
Benefit payments (17.43) (17.43) -
March 31, 2021 544.21 50.60 493.61
b) The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Present value of funded obligations 544.21 360.93
Fair value of plan assets 50.60 54.02
Deficit of funded plan 493.61 306.91
Unfunded plans - -

Deficit of gratuity plan 493.61 306.91

¢) The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Discount Rate (per annum)

Rate of Increase in Compensation levels (p.a.)
Attrition Rate

18 years to 30 years

30 years to 44 years

44 years to 58 years

Expected average remaining working lives of
employees (years)

Employees Gratuity Fund

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
6.60% 6.75%
10.00% 8.00%
47.00% 47.00%
3.00% 3.00%
1.00% 1.00%
30.82 32.10

Compensated absences

March 31, 2021
6.60%
10.00%

47.00%

3.00%
1.00%

30.82

March 31, 2020
6.75%
8.00%

47.00%

3.00%
1.00%

32.10

Assumptions regarding future mortality for pension are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience. The discount rate assumed is determined by
reference to market yield at the balance sheet date on government bonds. The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.




d) Sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00% -14.23% -13.00% 17.55% 16.00%
Salary growth rate 1.00% 1.00% 11.71% 15.00% -11.20% -13.00%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benehit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the samo method (preeent value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. Assumptions
other than discount rate and salary growth rate are not material for the Company.

¢) The major catcgories of plans asscts arc as follows:

Funds Managed by Insurer* - 100%
*The Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation and Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited. They do not provide breakup of plan assets by investment type.

f) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility:

The pian liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yiclds; if plan asscts underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The gratuity fund is administered through

Life Insurance Corporation of India and (insurer) Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited under its group gratuity scheme. Accordingly almost the entire plan assct investments is
maintained by the insurer. These arc subject to interest rate risk which is managed by the insurer.

Changes in bond yields: A decreasc in bond yiclds will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ asscts maintained by the insurer.
The gratuity fund is administered through Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India & Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited under its Group Gratuity Scheme.

g) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.8 years (2020 - 23 years).
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post employment benefit plan (gratuity) is as follows :

Less than Between Between Over 5
aycar 1-2 years 2 -5 years years Total
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021

Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 22.62 26.55 117.88 249.80 416.85
Total 22.62 26.55 117.88 249.80 416.85
March 31, 2020

Defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) 7,37 1.87 6.70 344.99 360.93
Total 7.37 1.87 6.70 344.99 360.93




Note 12(a) : Trade payables

Current

Trade payables : micro and small enterprises (Refer note 24)
Trade payables : others

Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 28)

Total

Note 12(b) : Other financial liabilities

Current
Employee related payables
Total

Note 13 : Other current liabilities

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source
Liabilities towards employces laptop scheme

Deferred revenuc

Total

Note 14 : Revenue from operations

Commission from online aggregation of financial products
Sale of leads

Online marketing and consulting

Marketing support services

Total

Note 15 : Other income

Interest Income
- On bank deposits
- On income tax refund
- On unwinding of discount - measured at amortised cost
Profit on sale of property, plant and cquipment
Covid-19 - related rent concessions
Gain on termination of leases

Fair value gain on investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on sale of current investments measured at fair value through profit or loss ( m.t)

Liability no longer required written back
Loss allowance no longer required written back
Total

As at
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

174.74 742.03
2,034.40 2,841.63
1,178.69 1,954.63
3,387.83 5,538.29
Ag at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

829.67 749.42
829.67 749.42
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

411.18 431.87
26.71 -
- 42.62
437.89 474.49
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

5,755.48 14,337.62
2,768.16 4,026.92
10,231.33 4,254.70
77.39 -
18,832.36 22,619.24
Yecar ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

2.60 3.35
83.90 17.42
8.07 6.76
0.05 0.35
39.56 -
1.17 -
35.15 #
48.69 115.76
32.70 =
120.44 137.51
372.33 281.15




Note 16 : Employec benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 11)
Compensated absences

Gratuity (Refer note 11)

Staff welfarc expenses

Employce share-based payment expensc [Refer Note 26(b)]
Total

Note 17 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use asscts
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

Note 18 : Advertising and promotion expenses

Advertisement cxpenses
Business promotion expenses
Total

Note 19 : Network and internet expenses

Internet and scrver charges
Computer and equipment rental
IT consultancy charges
Communication expenses
Total

Year ended

March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Yecar ended

March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

7,826.98 10,885.62
410.14 754.44
208.07 191.97
170.68 131.44
128.21 119.86
464.27 54.78
9,208.35 12,138.12
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

280.39 413.23
246.17 202.99
33.37 56.18
559.93 672.40
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

4,838.95 15,823.29
2.39 38.38
4,841.34 15,861.67
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

937.62 953.39
5.89 7.38
90.47 171.64
367.30 412.00
1,401.28 1,544.41




Note 20 : Other expenses

Electricity and water expenses (Refer note 29)

Legal and professional charges
Rent (Refer note 29)
Repair and maintenance - others

Security and housekeeping expenses

Office expense

Travel and conveyance
Recruitment expenses
Rates and taxes
Insurance

Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) Fees (Refer note 28)

Printing and stationery
Postage and courier expense
Payment to auditors
As Auditor:
Audit fee
Tax audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses
Payment gateway charges
Documents collection charges
Bank charges
Training and seminar
Bad debts
Provision for doubtful advances
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Vendor advances written off
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Note 21 : Finance cost

Interest on lease liablities
Interest Expenses
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

79.54 217.25
64.42 58.19
186.39 648.88
19.56 101.81
100.81 115.34
4.70 24.55
9.46 97.79
16.29 38.53
76.01 42.84
33.02 27.32
941.62 1,130.96
4.50 22.70
5.48 8.77
12.24 10.50
0.50 0.50
0.26 0.29
36.37 77.29
0.95 31.69
2.11 2.51
7.41 9.83
108.59 -
- 15.80
4.07 0.93
64.66 -
0.36 51.74
1,779.32 2,736.01

Year ended
March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

55.99 57.36
0.55 9.50
56.54 66.86




Note 22: Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year*

Adjustments for current tax related to earlier years
Total current tax expense

Income tax expense

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(Rs. in

Lakhs)

Year ended
March 31,2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

*Current tax payable for FY 2020-21 has been sct off against brought forward unused tax losses, therefore, current tax expense for FY 2020-

21 is Nil.

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2020 - 25.168%) #

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Tax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred income tax is recognised

Adjustments for current tax related to carlier years

Income tax expense

1,357.93
341.76

(341.76)

(10,119.08)
(2,546.77)

2,546.77

# Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) ordinance, 2019 (ordinance) dated September 20, 2019, the Company has decided to opt for

the concessional rate of income tax of 22%.

N



Note 23: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

a) Deferred tax assets (Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Deferred tax liability (96.63) (161.98)
Deferred tax assets * 96.63 161.98
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) , R
* Deferred tax assets have been recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabilitics
b) Components of deferred tax asscts
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Property, plant and cquipment & intangibles 83.96 67.40
Defined benefit obligations 216.65 156.25
Provision for loss allowance 11.42 41.73
Provision for doubtful advances 6.01 9.99
Lease liabilitics 108.29 172.57
Tax losses 5102.81 5523.68
Others 30.74 53.47
Total 5,559.88 6,025.09
¢) Components of deferred tax liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Right of use asscts 96.63 161.98
Total 96.63 161.98
d) Unused tax losses and unrecognised temporary differences:
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Unused tax losses 19,740.23 21,592.92
Other tax credits # 534.74 354.30
Deductible temporary differences 1,432.15 1,348.67
Total 21,707.12 23,295.89
Potential tax benefit @ 25.168% 5,463.25 5,863.11
Expiry dates for unused tax losses :
- March 31, 2024 - 1,039.66
- March 31, 2025 1,447.00 2,260.03
- March 31, 2027 8.824.45 8,824 .45
- March 31, 2028 9,468.78 9,468.78

# 1t includes unabsorbed depreciation which can be carried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

The Board of Dircctors of the Company have reviewed the Company’s business activitics, financial position, historical trend of
revenue and net profits/taxable profits, current year operating profits and considering management’s future business strategics and
projected future taxable profits, concluded that the Company may not be able to carn sufficient future taxable profits in the near
future, 1o adjust the accumulated business losses. Accordingly, the Company has decided not to recognise the deferred tax asset on
accumulated business losses and temporary differences. The Company may consider to recognise deferred tax assets on




Note : 24 Dues to micro and small enterprises

According to the information available with the management, on the basis of intimation received from suppliers, regarding their status under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the Company has amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the said Act as

follows:

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act remaining
unpaid as at year end. [Refer note 12 (a)]

Interest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid
as at year end. [Refer note 12 (a)]

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year

Amount of further intercst remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the MSMED Act

Note 25 : Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilitics is as follows:

Property, plant and cquipment
Total

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
163.97 731.80
10.77 10.22
231.16 2,028.19
0.55 8.75
0.55 9.50
10.77 10.22
As at As at

March 31, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

4.14

3.57

4.14

3.57




Note 26: Share based payments

(a)

(b)

Employee option plan

The Parent company (PB Fintech Private Limited (Erstwhile, Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited)) has set up a trust to administer the ESOP scheme under which options have been
granted to certain employees of the parent Company and its subsidiaries. Under this ESOP scheme, the employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in
the grant. The options granted till March 31, 2021 have a vesting period of maximum 5 years from the date of grant.

1) Summary of options granted under plan :

March 31,2021
Average exercise price
per share option*

March 31,2020
Average exercise price
per share option

Number of options# Number of options#

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Opening Balance 2 9,460 2 10,430
Granted during the year 2 2,340 2 =
Exercised during the year 2 (4,320) 2 (600)
Forfeited/lapsed during the year 2 (145) 2 (810)
Share receipt due to transfer of employee 2 - 2 440
Share transfer due to transfer of employee 2 - 2 -
Closing Balance 7,335 9,460
Vested and exercisable 3,350 6,435

# Pursuant to the approval of the sharcholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the parent Company held on November 24, 2020, each equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- per share was sub-
divided into five equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- per share with effect from the record date, i.e., November 30, 2020. Accordingly, each option of Rs. 10/- exercise price was sub-divided into 5
options of Rs. 2/- each. The disclosures below (including comparatives) have been adjusted to align with new exercise price/face value Rs 2/- each.

*The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2021 was Rs. 10/- upto November 30, 2020 and Rs. 2/- December 1, 2020 onwards
(March 31, 2020 - Rs. 10/-).

No options expired during the periods covered in the above tables.

ii) Share options outstanding at the end of year have following expiry date and exercise prices :

Share options Share options

Grant Grant date Expiry date Exercise price March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Grant 3 April 01, 2014 March 31, 2030 2 2,370 4,265
Grant 4 April 01, 2015 March 31, 2030 2 - 460
Grant 5 April 01, 2016 March 31, 2030 2 315 1,165
Grant 6 April 01, 2017 March 31, 2030 2 1,795 2,530
Grant 7 December 01, 2017 March 31, 2030 2 240 565
Grant 8 April 01,2018 March 31, 2030 2 275 475
Grant 12 December 01, 2020 March 31, 2030 2 720 -
Grant 14 December 01, 2020 March 31, 2030 2 1,620 -

Total 7335 9,460

Weighted Average remaining contractual life of options

outstanding at end of year 1.44 Years

10 Years

ii1) Fair value of options granted :

The fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31, 2021 were as given below (March 31, 2020 — Rs. 41,105 for Grant 10).
(a) Grant 11 — Rs. 43,071
(b) Grant 12 and 14 - Rs. 101,162

For Grant 11, 12 and 14 (being time-based vesting Grants), the fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton model. These models take into account the exercise price, the term
of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2021 included:
a) options are granted at face value and vest upon completion of service/performance condition for a period 1-4 years (March 31, 2020 - one years). Vested options are exercisable till March 31, 2030

b) exercise price: Rs. 2 (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 10)

c) grant date: April 01, 2020, December 01, 2020 (March 31, 2020 - October 1, 2019)

d) expiry date: March 31, 2030 (March 31, 2020 - March 31, 2030)

e) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 64.92 % for Grant - 11 and 50% for Grant 12 and 14 and (March 31, 2020 - 87.2% for Grant - 10)
f) expected dividend yield: 0% (March 31, 2020 — 0%)

g) risk-free interest rate: 6.31% for Grant 11 and 6.25% for Grant 12 and 14 (March 31, 2020 - 6.6% for Grant 10)

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

Expense arising from share based payment transaction

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Employee option plan

March 31,2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)

464.27

March 31,2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

54.78

Total employee share based payment expense

464.27




Note 27: Earnings/(LLoss) per share

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Basic and diluted
Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) A 1,357.93 (10,119.08)
Weiphted averape number of shares of Rs.10 outstanding B 31,076,255 29,021,905
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share (in Rs.) A/B 4.37 (34.87)
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per share (in Rs.) A/B 4.37 (34.87)
Face value per share (Rs.) 10 10

The Company does not have any outstanding potential dilutive equity shares.
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Note 30 : Fair Value measurements

a) Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets
Investments
- Mutual funds 6,676.54 - - s = -
Trade receivables - - 4,944 .80 - - 6,254.91
Cash and cash equivalents - - 618.58 - - 1.597.26
Other bank balances - - 2.00 - - -
Loans- Security deposits - - 107.80 - & 100.21
Employee Loans - - 11.40 - - 23.22
Amount recoverable from Holding company for - - 396 @ -
expenses '
Amount recoverable from fellow Subsidiary - - 6.06 = - (.56
Company for expenses
Other financials assets - - 46.66 - - -
Total financial assets 6,676.54 - 5,740.56 - - 7,982.40
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - - 3,387.83 - - 5,538.29
Total financial liabilities - - 3,387.83 - - 5,538.29
b)  Fair value hicrarchy
Financial assets measured at fair value :
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL:
Investments in Mutual funds 6(b) 6,676.54 - - 6,676.54
Total financial assets 6,676.54 - - 6,676.54
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2020 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL:
Investments in Mutual funds 6(b) - - - -

Total financial assets




<)

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices, for example listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds
that have quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair

value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. For example, unlisted equity

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
The company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hicrarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial
liabilitics are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts arc equal to the fair values.




Note No.: 31
Financial risk and Capital management
A) Financial risk management framework

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Diversification of
o Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other : bank deposits, credit
Credit risk . Aging analysis i
financial assets measured at amortised cost limits and letters of
credit
. Availability of surplus
e Rolling cash flow 4 P
Liquidity risk Other financial liabilities cash and support from
forecasts
parent company
Portfolio
Price Risk Investments in mutual funds Credit rating diversification and
regular monitoring

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables
from customers.

(a

Trade receivables related credit risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual ct istics of each However, also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
customer base, including the default risk of the industry. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of
default 1s determined by considering the business environment in which Company operates and other macro-economic factors

Credit quality of a customer 1s assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company, market intelligence and goodwill. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored
by the management

The Company has established an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of
computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables and 12-month expected credit loss for other receivables. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major
parties. The calculation is based on historical data of actual losses. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery

Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Basis for recognition of expected credit loss provision
Cat Description of catego
Ategory Gseriplio egory Security deposits Loans to employees Trade receivables
Assets where the counter-
. B arty has strong capacity to
High quality assets, negligible e ne ALty
dit risk meet the obligations and

creaitns where the risk of default is
negligible or nil
Asserswherethereislow 12-month expected credit | 12-month expected Lifetime expected
risk of default and where the| loss credit loss credit losses
counter-party has sufficient

Quality assets, low credit risk capacity to meet the
obligations and where there
has been low frequency of
defaults in the past

Year ended March 31, 2021:

(a) Expected credit loss for security deposits & loans to employees: (Rs. in Lakhs)

. Carrying
Estimated gr
. P . l.n“ eC gross Expected probabili Expected credit | amount net of
Particulars Category Description of category Asset group carrying amount at . .
default of default losses impairment

provision

Assets where the
counterparty has strong

: i i 7. .00% - :
Loss allowance measured at 12 High quality assets, capacity to meet the Security deposits 107.80 0/00% 10780
month expected credit losses negligible credit risk obligations and where the
sk fault is nealici
risk of default ’_S negligible Loans to employees 11.40 0.00% - 11.40
or nil
(b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach: (Rs. in Lakhs)
P:I|1|c1.xlars Not Due 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days 271-360 days More than 360 Total
/Ageing past due past due past due past due days past due
Grtiss canying amount-trade 1,408.87 162.78 20.50 9.80 0.76 334 1,606.05
receivables - Billed
Gross carrying amount- trade
. 3,384.13 - - - - - 5
receivable - Unbilled ’ 838413
Expected loss rate 0.57%| 3.84% 15.11% 48.06% 100.00% 100.00%

Expected credit losses (Loss
allowance provision)- trade 27.23 6.25 310 4.70 0.76 334 4538
receivables and Unbilled revenue
Carrying amount of trade

receivables (net of impairment)

> Consu/y

4,765.77 156.53

4,944.80




(b

()

B)

Year ended March 31, 2020:

(a) Expected credit loss for security deposits & loans to employees:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Category

Description of category

Asset group

Estimated gross
carrying amount at

Expected probability

Expected credit

Carrying
amount net off

default of default losses impni!'n.)cnl
provision
Assets where the
counterparty has strong Security deposits 100.21 0.00% - 100.21
Loss allowance measured at 12 High quality assets, capacity to meet the
month expected credit losses negligible credit risk obligations and where the
risk of default is negligible| Loans to employees 23.22 0.00% - 23.22

ornil

(b) Lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

0-90 da 91-180 day: 181-270 day 71- ay: re than 360
Particulars/Ageing Not Due R¥S Ays days 371-360 days More than Total
past due past due past due past due days past due
Gross carrying amount- trade 2,627.88 495.81 35.30 108.61 16.00 83.97 3367.57
receivables - Billed
Gross carrying amount- trade
; X 3,053.16 - - . : . ;

receivable - Unbilled 3053.16
Expected loss rate 0.74% 1.64% 7.07% 32.86% 100.00%, 100.00%
Expected crédit lossesi(Loss 1951 8.15 2.50 35.69 16.00 83.97 165.82
allowance provision)
Cariying amount of trade 5,661.53 487.66 32.80 72.92 - - 6,254.91

receivables (net of impairment)

The following table summarizes the change in loss allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:

Particulars

Rs. In Lakhs

Loss allowance on 1 April 2019 303.34
Changes in loss allowance (137.52)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 165.82
Changes in loss allowance (120.44)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021 45.38

Treasury related credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies,
accordingly the Company considers that the related credit risk is low. Impairment on these items are measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
The Company’s treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining liquidity through investments in liquid funds. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

0to 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
March 31, 2021
Non-derivatives
Lease liabilities 263.44 166.84 - 430.28
Trade payables 3,387.83 - - 3,387.83
Other financial liabilities 829.67 - - 829.67
Total non-derivative liabilities 4,480.94 166.84 - 4,647.78
March 31, 2020
Non-derivatives
Lease liabilities 506.43 496 .87 - 1,003.30
Trade payables 5,538.29 - - 5,538.29
Other financial liabilities 749.42 - - 749.42
Total non-derivative liabilities 6,794.14 496.87 - 7,291.01

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from
such investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Further these are all debt base securities for which the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Quotes (NAV) of these investments are

available from the mutual fund houses

Profit/losses for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on these securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
The capital of the Company consist of equity capital and accumulated profits/losses.




Note 32 : During FY 2019-20, the Provident fund authorities (“Authority”) had inspected the books and records of the Company for the period August 2015 to December
2019. As an outcome of inspection, the Authority had raised a demand amounting to Rs. 0.34 lakhs which had been deposited by the Company during the previous year.
Post this inspection period, i.e. January 2020 onwards, the Company is computing and depositing the provident fund following the same computation approach as followed
by the Authority during inspection.

Note 33 : Segment information

An operating segment is one whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance. The Company has identified its whole time director as its chief operating decision maker. The Company's business activities fall
within a single business segment as the Company is engaged in the business of showing online comparison and sales of financial products like
home/car/personal/cducation/other loans, credit cards, saving accounts, mutual funds etc. Based on nature of services rendered, the risk and returns, internal organization
and management stucture and the intermal performance reporting systems, the management considers that the Company is organized basis a single segment of rendering a
bundle of services to the financial services industry. The chief decision maker reviews the performance of business as on overall basis. As the Company has a single

reportable segment, the segment wise disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 on Operating segment is not applicable. Further, the Company earns entire revenue within
India only.

The revenues of Rs. Nil (March 31,2020 - Rs. 2,558.21 Lakhs) are derived from a single external customer.

Note 34 : Going concern

The Company’s business activitics, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance along with the financial position of the Company, its
projected cash flows and letter of support provided by PB Fintech Private Limited (Erstwhile, Etechaces Marketing and Consulting Private Limited) have been reviewed by
the Board of Dircctors and they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresceable future.
Thus, the Company has continued to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Note 35: Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been scvere disruption to regular business
operations duc to lock-downs, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

The management has assessed the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial statements, business operations, liquidity position, cash flow and has concluded that no
material adjustments are required in the carrying amount of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021. In view of highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive

assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions.

Note 36 : Events occuring after balance sheet date
Approval of financial statements - The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 18, 2021.
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